
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Monday, January 28, 2013 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

                            City of South Haven 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Approval of Agenda 

 
4. Approval of Minutes – October 22, 2012 
 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
NEW BUSINESS –Variance Request 
 
6. Phyllis Poorman, 322 Superior Street and Timothy Brattain, 324 Superior Street, request a 

joint variance from zoning ordinance section 1708-3, Accessory Buildings. The applicants 
are seeking to replace a shared garage which was destroyed by a falling tree. Because the 
garage crosses the property line, the structure is nonconforming in that it does not meet the 
required side setback requirements.  The parcel numbers for the applicant properties is 80-
53-015-004-01 and 80-53-015-003-00. 

 
7. Member Comments 
 
8. Adjourn 
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 
 

South Haven City Hall is barrier free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary 
reasonable auxiliary aids and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting to 
individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon seven (7) days notice to the South Haven City 
Hall.    
 
January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 1 of 24



Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Monday, October 22, 2012 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

                            City of South Haven 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order by Ingersoll at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 

Present: Apotheker, Henry, Lewis, Paull, Wittkop, Ingersoll,  
Absent:  Wheeler 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
 Motion by Wittkop, second by Henry to approve the October 22, 2012 regular meeting 

agenda as presented. 
 
 All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
4. Approval of Minutes – September 24, 2012 

 
Motion by Henry, second by Apotheker to approve the September 24, 2012 regular meeting 
minutes as written. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

None at this time. 
 
NEW BUSINESS –Variance Request 
 
6. Kal-Haven Bikes, Inc., (represented by David Nixon), 1073 E. Wells Street, requests a 

variance from zoning ordinance section 1716-2, Nonresidential Access. The applicant 
is seeking to gain access to commercial property through a residential area via an 
existing private road/easement. The parcel number for the applicant’s property is 80-
53-870-010-00. 

 
Anderson noted the applicant is looking for a variance from one line in the ordinance. 
Ingersoll asked if this goes hand in hand with the last issue the applicant brought before the 
board. Anderson responded that the last time the applicant appeared he requested an 

January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 2 of 24



interpretation of whether the easement he holds to the extension of Black River Road could 
be interpreted as a private road. The ZBA found that the wording in the easement did allow 
the same access as would a private street or road. 
  
Attorney Steve McKown, Allegan, Michigan, representing David Nixon. McKown 
handed the chair exhibits to be distributed to the board and explained each exhibit. The first 
exhibit is the legal description; second is a small aerial map; third is the land contract from 
1987 regarding this property; fourth is a land contract memorandum; fifth is the deed from 
the land contract sellers in the 1990’s; sixth is a deed; seventh, for this record tonight, the 
application for the interpretation and the two judgments that were entered in Circuit Court in 
Paw Paw; eighth is the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request and the City’s response 
(this is pertinent since the language in question appeared in the 1990 zoning amendment 
section, long after the applicant acquired the property); and ninth is a copy showing past use 
of the property and the Department of Natural Resources approval for boat slips.  
 
McKown stated that the property involved is about 3.82 acres, bordered on the west by the 
Black River, on the south and east by the Kal-Haven trail, with the only access the 
easement from Blue Star Highway. The easement is shared with several residential 
properties and then continues on to the applicant’s property. The question at the last 
meeting was whether or not the existing easement is a private road. McKown noted that 
every private road is an easement of sorts allowing access for ingress, egress or utilities. 
Denying this variance would deprive the owner of use of his property. Access is not defined 
in the ordinance so they chose to use the commonly understood meaning. Admitting that no 
research was done, McKown stated, “There are likely other uses like marinas that go 
through residential property in the city for access.” McKown stated, “Resorting to the 
definition of access from the dictionary includes any alley or road, including public and 
private roads”.  
 
McKown asked, “What was the City Council intending to do when they adopted this 
amendment? Were they only including private roads?” McKown continued, “This 
amendment does not do that so it leaves uncertainty. We (the applicant) are asking for a 
variance; this twenty-four foot (24’) easement, this private road, is the only way to get to this 
property so it is usable.” 
 
McKown noted that in section 901 there is a list of what can be done in the B-3 zoning 
district. The list includes beaches, recreation areas, dwellings above permitted use (mixed 
use), marinas, golf courses and hotels, among others. Planned Unit Developments (PUDs) 
are permitted with a commercial use included. There is no use that can be implemented on 
this property without this zoning variance. McKown said he and his client do not know if 
there is anything else like this situation anywhere else in the City; this property is taxed as 
commercial property but the owners can not get to it. Since 1987, when Mr. Nixon acquired 
the property in conjunction with his wife and a corporation, there have been commercial 
uses made.  
 
Ingersoll asked how the previous owner gained access; McKown stated the previous owner 
(Mr. Olen) made use of the easement to get to the property.  
 
Ingersoll asked why the access was not pursued at the time of the previous lawsuits. 
McKown explained that in August 2010 and December 2011 there were other lawsuits 
regarding issues with the easement filed by residential owners along Black River Road as 
well.  The easement was changed to 24’ from 16’ at the time of those lawsuits. McKown 

 2
January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 3 of 24



 

stated that in 1984, as demonstrated by Exhibit 5, the survivors of Mr. Olen conveyed the 
ownership to Mr. Nixon and the present corporation.  
 
The predicament, according to McKown, is that there is no apparent use that can be made 
of this property without access. According to McKown, there have been two requests for 
variances. The problem is not self-created; this was created by the adoption of the Zoning 
Ordinance. There can not be any reasonable use of the property without the variance.  
 
McKown noted that there are nine (9) factors required as part of the application. McKown 
went through the application’s nine (9) factors, reiterating the responses included in the 
application.  
 
Paull stated Nixon does not own the easement. McKown responded that an easement is a 
slice of ownership; the applicant does own that easement along with others who use it. His 
corporation is considered an owner by definition in your ordinance. This easement can only 
be used for ingress and egress and for public utilities.  
 
Wittkop asked, “There are no other easements that cross the Kal-Haven Trail?” McKown 
noted that this corporation, Kal-Haven Bikes, does not own the property to the south. The 
group discussed the entities that do cross the Kal-Haven Trail, such as farmers and farm 
related businesses.  
 
Lewis spoke to a change in use of the private road/easement being detrimental to others 
around the neighborhood. Heavy traffic use could be detrimental. McKown said his client 
has no specific plans since he is unable to access the property at this time. Here he is just 
trying to get a variance to use the property. McKown noted the topography is a little unusual, 
with one area quite steep with a hill.  
 
Wittkop asked how much of the property is dry. McKown noted that there are different 
numbers out there, but said some numbers he has heard identify 60% as wetland. Whatever 
environmental issues are involved will control uses; there would need to be Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ) or Drain Commissioner approvals.  
 
Ingersoll asked if the owner of the land across which the easement is located has been 
involved. McKown responded that the owner of that land was not responsive to their 
inquiries. That is what ultimately led to the past legal actions. 
 
Paull asked how the easement grew from a 16’ utility easement to a 24’ road. McKown said 
the original 16’ was for ingress and egress; the change to 24’ was a result of lawsuits.  
 
Ken Lane, Clarke Hill, City Attorney for South Haven. Lane stated that the easement was 
established by two court orders and two quiet title actions. The stated purpose of the 
easement was pedestrian and vehicular ingress and egress and that meets the definition of 
a private road. This request is not to change the use of the easement, or how the applicant’s 
property can be used. This request is for relief from section 1716.2, which does not allow the 
private road to provide access over residential property to a commercial property. The 
applicant wants to use the property for typical uses under B-3 zoning. Lane explained why 
he did not give the board a firm recommendation, but rather gave the pros and cons as 
starting points for discussion.  
 

 3
January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 4 of 24



Paull asked, “Is not the use of this road as a residential access quite different than the use 
as a commercial driveway, in terms of intensity?” Lane said without knowing what the private 
road, stated to be for pedestrian and vehicular access, will be used for, it is hard to say 
whether or not the easement traffic will be an issue. Paull asked if cars with trailers, trucks 
with trailers and boats on trailers will be more intense. Lane pointed out that it is still 
vehicular access which does not state how much traffic. Ingersoll said one section of the 
ordinance says the access is for vehicular access, the other section says it cannot be 
accessed for commercial uses. “We are parsing words”, Paull stated. Henry said we need to 
go back and try to understand the intent of the wording of this particular ordinance. Ingersoll 
said the board does not look at the intent but at the wording. This easement is identified as a 
private road under the Zoning Ordinance.  Lane returned that without knowing what this 
private road is going to be used for, there may need to be improvement made to this road 
but that is a different meeting and a different issue.  

 
Ingersoll opened the public hearing. 
 
Dixie Capps, resident of Black River Road since 1987; another resident has been there 
over thirty years and still another, both in attendance, for fifteen years. Capps stated her 
question to the board is, “Have any of you looked at the road?” Her deed for the easement 
shows 16’; the road is not that wide. Capps said she has heard a marina is going to be put 
in there. “This is wetlands and cattails; how is Nixon going to widen the road to 24’?” 
Anderson noted that the easement is 24’ feet in front of her house. Capps said years ago 
someone wanted to put a campground in there; this is a nesting area for birds. Capps asked 
the board to vote no and asked the board to wait and look at that road before making a 
decision.  
 
Robert Trowbridge, 01250 Blue Star Highway. Trowbridge stated that he owns the property 
along Black River Road which is in South Haven Township. Trowbridge had questions about 
how the 16’ easement changed to a 24’ easement; now he knows how that happened. 
Stated he does the maintenance on the road and it is hard to keep up with because it is soft 
and sinks; he can not continue to do the maintenance if this request is granted and the 
property begins to be used for commercial purposes and the road starts being used for 
commercial traffic. Each of us (the residents) owns a piece of the easement. If it is going to 
be 24’ through South Haven Township, there is a deep ditch that will have to be 
reconstructed and drained. Trowbridge has asked South Haven Township and they would 
not let him drain it. How are you going to make three hundred (300’) of the road in the 
township wider. Trowbridge concluded, “What financial burden will be put on the residents if 
that road is improved?”  
 
Wittkop asked if the board is ruling on a city or a township issue. Anderson said if this 
request is granted, the approval would have to be contingent on the applicant working with 
the township. As far as the city, any use that goes in there has to go to planning commission 
and be reviewed by emergency services, the police department, city engineering, etc. This 
is only the first in a number of approvals which would be required.  
 
Lewis said Mr. Trowbridge brings up a very good point to which Ingersoll responded, “No, 
construction is not part of our pervue here. We are here to rule only on what is written in the 
ordinance as pertains to this request.”  
 
Matt Petter, 508 River Island Drive. Petter lives across the river from the property under 
discussion; Kal-Haven Bike Company comes before the board all the time, just asking for 

 4
January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 5 of 24



 

little bits from the ZBA or planning commission. Petter said, “Go to the ordinance that says 
you cannot put commercial access over private land.” Petter stated that the applicant 
probably bought that property for a song because it is landlocked. Now he comes and asks 
for this and he recommends no. 
 
Motion by Lewis, second by Henry to close the public hearing.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Anderson shared three letters in opposition from Ward Hamlin Jr.; Constance and Matt 
Petter and Richard Docksteder. 
 
Paull stated that when a variance is granted a precedent is being established; “I realize that 
somewhere in the ordinance it states that ZBA decision do not set a precedent”. Paul 
continued, “But in this case if you grant the variance, you are setting a precedent.” Ingersoll 
said “every time this board grants something we set a precedent. There is only one set of 
circumstances that we are considering”. Paull said he didn’t study the entire city, but there 
might be some places in the City where similar circumstances exist. Ingersoll stated that the 
board cannot go on “ifs” but on the facts that we know. 
 
Lewis said Ingersoll is correct and his biggest issue is that he does not see how he can vote 
against it, unfortunately. As far as can be told from the information provided, this is the only 
access to the applicant’s property. Lewis said, “Shame on the city for creating this situation.” 
The zoning ordinance, according to Ingersoll, sets this up as a commercial property and the 
drafters probably did not even consider access.  
 
Apotheker has a problem with the question in the standards (Section 2205-1) which states 
that that this request, if granted, will not be detrimental to adjacent property owners. 
Apotheker thinks granting this request could cause problems and be detrimental to those 
along Black River Street.  
 
Wittkop has a problem with the entrance to this area through the township. If the Zoning 
Board grants this and the township says “Sorry, Charlie,” we are putting the cart before the 
horse. Ingersoll said the applicant does not have any reason to go before the township 
unless they can get this variance”.  
 
Anderson said any decision made by the board, can have contingencies, such as they must 
get township approval within a certain amount of time.  
 
Attorney Ken Lane: The variance grants the relief from that particular section of the Zoning 
Ordinance; it does not say anything about the condition of the road, whether it is appropriate 
for specific uses of the property, the rest remains an issue for the township and the Planning 
Commission. Ingersoll said if the Zoning Board approves it, the approval is not saying 
anything about the use of the property.  
 
Henry is comfortable with the ordinance and the way it is written so would have to vote no.  
 
Motion by Henry that the request for a variance from Zoning Ordinance 1716.2 be denied. 
Second by Wittkop. 
 
Lewis would like to see the reasons for the denial included in the motion. 

 5
January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 6 of 24



 
Wittkop said such a variance will be detrimental to adjacent lands and the surrounding 
neighborhood, per zoning Section 2205-1.  
 
Motion by Henry that the request for a variance from Zoning Ordinance 1716-2 be denied 
since such a variance has the potential for detriment to the neighborhood. 
 
Anderson asked that the chair clarify that a yes vote meant to deny the request and a no 
vote meant to approve the request. 

 
A roll call vote was taken: 
 
Ayes: Henry, Paull, Wittkop, Apotheker 
Nays: Lewis, Ingersoll 
 
Motion carried.  
 
Ingersoll stated we denied a request to allow commercial access over residential property in 
a 4 to 2 vote.  
 

7. Michael Roth, 214 Huron Street, requests a variance from zoning ordinance section 
402-5 to permit 44 percent lot coverage where 40 percent is the maximum allowed. 
The parcel number for the applicant’s property is 80-53-022-005-00. 

 
Anderson noted this is regarding a covered roof. Mr. Roth is seeking to construct a wrap-
around porch with a roof. This brings the lot coverage to 44 percent, which is 4 percent more 
than the ordinance maximum of 40 percent. Anderson talked about keeping part of it open, 
with a pergola to bring that percentage down, but applicant preferred to keep it consistent. 
 
Roth, Michael and Julie, 214 Huron. “Anderson correctly stated our case. The house is the 
second from the last on Huron and is a single story two-bedroom house with a screened in 
porch on the west end of the house”. Roth explained he and his wife bought the house and 
due to having four kids, wanted to put another bedroom on the house. After they got into the 
process they found out that the foundation will not support another story, “so we could not 
go up over the existing portion of the house. We got an architect to give us a plan to replace 
the screen porch with a four-season room and go up over that. We want to keep the screen 
porch atmosphere and the character of the house. We use our screened porch all the time. 
Our improvements would be right where it is now; not encroaching into the open space. By 
putting our year-round improvements where the screen porch is, we will try to keep the 
screen porch atmosphere by screening in part of the new porch. Roth explained that the 
second floor will be a cantilever over the new family room. Our neighbors wished us well 
when we talked to them about it. It will maintain the neighborhood character of the area; 
many of the other houses have similar improvements.”  
 
Ingersoll asked for more details. Roth explained that the existing screen porch would turn 
into a family room and the upstairs above the family room would be bedrooms. We hoped to 
bring the porch around the house.  
 
Ingersoll asked if Roth really wanted the Huron Street porch and the portion of the porch 
that faces the garage and the concrete. Ingersoll stated that the 25.5’ in the back could be 
taken off to which Roth responded, “We will be happy for what you will give us.” Roth also 

 6
January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 7 of 24



 

noted that this drawing was architecturally designed and it is possible that without the back 
portion we would not need a variance. Ingersoll stated he hates to shoot down a good idea. 
The ordinance says 40% but the flip side is this is an improvement to the South Haven area.  
 
Roth responded, “Shame on us that we did not find out in the inspection period that the 
foundation is not structurally good enough for us to build up over the main structure.”  
 
Lewis noted it is good to find as many exceptional circumstances as possible in considering 
these cases. Apotheker pointed out that the porch itself is not so much the issue as the 
cantilevered portion of the second floor. The group discussed the cantilever and noted that 
the cantilever alone does not bring the number above 40 percent. It is the porch roof that is 
the problem. The board also discussed conditions that could be attached to an approval.  
 
Motion by Henry, second by Apotheker to close the public hearing.  
 
Anderson noted that the board needs to look at the ordinance standards in considering this 
request.  
 
Ingersoll asked for discussion. Henry has no problem with the variance. Paull said the thing 
that bothers him is that if we approve this, we will be granting a substantial property right to 
one person that no one else in the neighborhood has. Ingersoll stated that the porch is not 
livable area. Wittkop said that does not matter, the porch is still covering property and has a 
roof. Paull said it still is granting something others do not have. Apotheker pointed out that 
the overage is a small amount at only 4 percent. 
 
Motion by Henry to approve the variance request at 214 Huron Street to allow for 44 percent 
lot coverage, a 4 percent increase over the allowed ordinance maximum of 40 percent. A 
condition shall be attached that the area to be defined shall not be used as habitable space. 
Reasons for the approval include the unique foundation structural problems which existed 
and not self-created by the applicant, the fact that requested variance improves the property 
and the neighborhood and is clearly not detrimental and the variance relates only to property 
under the control of the applicant. Second by Apotheker.  
 
A roll call vote was taken: 
 
Roll call vote:  
Ayes: Lewis, Apotheker, Henry, Ingersoll 
Nays: Paull, Wittkop 
 
Motion carried. Variance granted. 

 
8.   Member Comments 
 

None at this time. 
 
9.   Adjourn 
 

Motion by Lewis, second by Henry to adjourn at 8:17 p.m. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 

 7
January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 8 of 24



 8

 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 
 

January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 9 of 24



Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6 

Poorman/Brattain Variance Request 
 

 
City of South Haven 

 
 

Background Information:  
 
Phyllis Poorman, 322 Superior Street and Timothy Brattain, 324 Superior Street, request a joint 
variance from zoning ordinance section 1708-3, Accessory Buildings. The applicants are 
seeking to replace a shared garage which was destroyed by a falling tree. Because the garage 
crosses the property line, the structure is nonconforming in that it does not meet the required 
side or rear setback requirements.  The parcel numbers for the applicant properties is 80-53-
015-004-01 and 80-53-015-003-00. 
  
Recommendation: 

While staff has no issue with granting this variance, it is recommended that ZBA members 
carefully review the application and any public comments received. Any motion made will need 
to include specific reference to the ordinance requirements for ZBA variance decisions. 
 
Support Material: 
 
Completed applications 
Photos submitted by the applicants 
Staff Findings of Fact 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Staff Report 

August 27, 2012 
January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 10 of 24



'""II""",", Y 1"\n.11"\1""'~ n.~'lCU ~~ I 

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT
 

539 PHOENIX STREET, SOUTH HAVEN, MICHIGAN 49090
 
FOR INFORMATION CALL 269-637-0760
 

NOTE: Incomplete applications will not be processed. A fee of $300 will be required at
 
the time the application is submitted.
 

Name: 1 ~'1-\ tIS e------:v(j C) V- \A-'l ~ V\c Date: J J../ Ol~ / I ~ 
Q..t. t \ OJ (.\ 

Address: 3 ~ c6 ~ u ~ -Lt,r-r cjl'- S ~ Phone: ~ I 7 - 7 I 7 -~ ().., 30 
~c> ~~ 1:cwJ~ .~. 

Address of Present Zoning 
Property in Question: &()...d-.... ~ LA p~r.~';- ""'; L of Property: K J - J+ 

Name of Property Owner(s): l' ~ '1 1t I 'S' 1£. \> <f> c0 

Present Zoning of Neighboring Properties to the : 

North R.. I p.. South ~, A East ~ , 11- West R. t A 

Which Sections of the South Haven Zoning Ordinance are you requesting a variance from? 
Please indicate Section and Paragraph numbers. (City staff will help determine which 
variance(s) are required). 

Section(s):__-J-1-I-7..::V~E?"-----_3,,,,-_~aloG.J,~~A4<~;..:,.._~=~~ _ 
Under Article XXII, Section 2205 of the South Haven Zoning Ordinance, the Zoning Board of 
Appeals may not grant a variance from the regulations within the Ordinance unless certain 
conditions exist. No variance in the provisions of this Ordinance shall be authorized unless the 
Board finds, from reasonable evidence, that all of the following standards have been met: 

1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood., ft .. )....- ~~ 

W <- ~ """'- ~p )0.. c." ~ CL 9 c1"'-CA. ~ <- I"-V'a e...0 e..r
b ~~ ~ '-'\. ? \CA. LL- ~ v- () I..J ~ -, t;; -t ~~v"-<:>, J\j c1 ~ 
'-:> ~ lA... ~ ~ ~~ \f\I\ ,~~Cl ,. &---f ""D a.\..V..~ e.J u- ~ ~ '=') ~ 'L i 

2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. c::::; \--t) ~ 1 

No ~C:J<-L 

3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property in 
question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a practical 
diffICUlty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such as narrowness, 
shallowness. shape or topography of the property involved. or to the intended use of the 
property. See Section 2204(2). ~ ~ 

lT IA. • os tA') Q.S C:.AA\A ~ J lc:. j A- c.}...- c\-- Gc'J d J '<. v '"'l 

r- -t. p \OcU ~ y) lAc,< \..- Wcl"5 'r:e t...." '"4"'"4 
Rev. 2104 January 28, 2013 

Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 11 of 24



4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property right 
similar to that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district and in the vicinity. The 
possibility of increased financial return shall not of itself be deemed sufficient to warrant a 
variance. 

-S'-"~ l ~p \OI..<...Q.AA..(Lv\.L 

5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said 
property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or recurrent a nature as to make 
reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation for such conditions or situation. 

"""I ~ ~.Q- \A.() ~ \A.L- .e..-L<b ~ c; CA~ -L- I;; 'Q.~_:'S~<C ~ 

6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said 
property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of actions of the property 
owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created. 

I~L 6 c.. G'~ cl 

7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density would 
unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose, or 
would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome. \ I r 

"\.\} ,,~ CS V~ \f'lLC;~I d N J L-- Qt.\;~\ C::;, h.L \.-\ lA.1. l V't--IV\ CU.S 

t-L Y \cU-,' v~ Go ~ -<1..- t.G ()~ td. ,;;" -€-- I v"\. \\..6"5') , \, k , 

8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome the 
inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 

G o.v~L-- ~$ . d 't., ~~ 

9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of t~e applicant 

~ c1lAL e.,~ -a-L.- ~S l-- ~ Wi ~c>( 9 q v-a ~ .a

t LA... -S \-t) i' \f\A • 2 
January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 12 of 24



I hereby give permission for the members of the Zoning Board of Appeals and City Staff to 
access and inspect the property in question for the purpose of gathering information to make an 
informed decision on this variance request. 

~uU¥ ~. 1J&~~lItJ I.;{ /~ 7It; 
Property Owner 

f) ~y ll ..~ ~ :Pc)d r---VUe( V\. 
Date 

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE TO THE BEST OF 
MY KNOWLEDGE AND SUBMlrrED TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS FOR THEIR 
REVIEW. I REALIZE THAT ANY INFORMATION THAT I SUPPLY THAT IS NOT CORRECT 
COULD VOID ANY DECISION BY THE BOARD. I ALSO ACKNOWLEDGE THAT IF THE 
VARIANCE IS GRANTED BY THE BOARD, THE WORK WITHIN THE REQUEST MUST BE 
CARRIED OUT WITHIN ONE YEAR OF THE PUBLIC HEARING OR THE VARIANCE 
BECOMES NULL AND VOID. 

I~ /« ill:} 
Applicant Signature Date 

-Pl\.~ I ~, s. ~ ~~C) {'-vV\.a~ 

3 January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 13 of 24



( -------------

\ 

\ 

\ 

--I 

January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 14 of 24



ZONING VARIANCE REQUEST
 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
 
BlIlLDING DEPARTMENT
 

539 PHOENIX STREET, SOUTH HAVEN, MICHIGAN 49090
 
FOR INFORMATION CALL 269-637-0760
 

NOTE: Incomplete applications will not be processed. A fee of $300 will be required at
 
the time the application is submitted.
 

Name: Mt5J1?Ir&C/eATTA/Ai Date: /2-/3/" /Z 

Address:32.4~~ae.c57: ~/TH~Vt3N' Phone: 8/7,337 Z~g-

Address of Present zoninJ? 
Property in Question: :3~+ 6""d~tbe c5i-: of Property:/-A 

Name of Property Owner(s): -'""~kH;'r/YY ~ l3eArrA/4 
Present Zoning of Neighboring Properties to the: 

North PI-/! South 7<f-A EastRI-A West RI-,4 
Which Sections of the South Haven Zoning Ordinance are you requesting a variance from? 
Please indicate Section and Paragraph numbers. (City staff will help determine which 
variance(s) are required). 

Section(s): ;5;«-. /7 0 8 -:5 a C c&4o lidtrs 
Under Article XXII, Section 2205 of the South Haven Zoning Ordinance, the oning Board of 
Appeals may not grant a variance from the regulations within the Ordinance unless certain 
conditions exist. No variance in the provisions of this Ordinance shall be authorized unless the 
Board finds, from reasonable evidence, that all of the following standards have been met: 

1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood. A V 

t/AlC-7' Ke?tAc/~ ~AeFJGe Z2::;67',ecJV60 73y J;.GCG~7 
Uraen.. 1M5EGC3~ ~ 7#/s'bCATfoA/ ~ U£'5E ~ 
/0(;/ Ye?A.e6".

2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 

No, 

3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property in 
question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a practical 
difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such as narrowness, 
shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to the intended use of the 
property. See Section 2204(2). '/'I 

6HA£c?O UIV8IUAY }0rPl L--C'rI/fON G~ l}b/cv/.{/q 
f&:-~-rH 7koP'E£TIl35., OJ.lcY/cr>t:.l~ 7f572EiPC.ACI3 

Rev. 2/04 EXAC:r~, /It?2r NA-7.· January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 15 of 24



4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property right 
similar to that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district and in the vicinity. The 
possibility of increased financial return shall not of itself be deemed sufficient to warrant a h / 

variance. 77_ /"\ / ~ --r /J 7:.-rVA:SOlvC, r-,6?640/Nq L/u;2.. ~6/ vJSrrrS~- .. 

5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said 
property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or recurrent a nature as to make 
reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation for such conditions or situation. 

1I00ePuur ;r/orA c;/<?HO'</ OCCORA;<'/c6e

6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said 
property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of actions of the property 
owner. In other words, the problem shall not be.~elf-created. I 

/{orlleR--#Aru£e DID Z7- ~ 

7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density would 
unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose, or 
would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome. 

,,4,ifr7ll/Nt? aHE;e.. 7HA~ 7?t!??tAC6H8NT J1kC?£C?
 
7H~GA:,eAcqE Vir:5 Nout..O 8e z;.,PJ2Aorlt:A~
 

C7/I/BAJ' "7He RopelVY iA-r~uy; C;7/-1/1ee.;:; "Z'/2,~ )
 
8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome the 
inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 

ON'i,.y Re?tAC/IJCj C1/1eA4t3 EXAC7Z'/ /Is.zr.~5... 

9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant ...... 

W~V8 5/ro;A//o~ Bur ~As7!.&A7/NQ e; 70 t3tc1l 
I-brtF, 2 January 28, 2013 

Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 16 of 24



I hereby give permission for the members of the Zoning Board of Appeals and City Staff to 
ae<; inspect the property in question for the purpose of gathering information to make an 
. form isi on . " iane equest. 

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE TO THE BEST OF 
MY KNOWLEDGE AND SUBMITTED TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS FOR THEIR 
REVIEW. I REALIZE THAT ANY INFORMATION THAT I SUPPLY THAT IS NOT CORRECT 
COULD VOID ANY DECISION BY THE BOARD. I ALSO ACKNOWLEDGE THAT IF THE 
VARIANCE IS GRANTED BY THE BOARD, THE WORK WITHIN THE REQUEST MUST BE 
CARR 0 OUT WITHIN ONE YEAR OF THE PUBLIC HEARING OR THE VARIANCE 
sEta NU AND VOID. 

3 January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 17 of 24



January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 18 of 24



January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 19 of 24



A58

A78

A163

A153

A160

A59

A156

A68

A69

A135

A165

A129

A67

A70

A66

A60

A142

A132

A139

A133A134

A141 A143

A76
A131

A144
A140

A77
A75A

A149

A173
A171

A154

A147

A167
A170A168

A152

A174

A162

A150 A148

A169

A151

A158

A172
A166

A146

A157

A161

A155

A130

A159

A133A

A155A A149A

A164
A163A

SOUTH SHORE VILLAS

Erie St

Ind
ian

a A
ve

Ka
lam

az
oo

 S
t

Superior St

Van Buren St

Clinton St

300 ft Notice Area for 322 & 324 Superior St

Legend
300ft Buffer
Noticed Properties
Subject Property1/3/2013

µ

January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 20 of 24



MICHIGAN PLAT OF SURVEY 
SEE S~EET 2 FOR DESCRIPTION 

SUPERIOR ( ", R.O.W. ) STREET 
SET 'X' 
IN CONC~ 

EAST 

I 
~
 

I
 
',- 50.00· ... ... 

t:: 

. GAS METER 

. ... 

, . 

;. 
0 
N 
0 
0 
0 

FENCE COR. 
IS 0.15 IAlEST 
OF PROP. COR. 

POWER-
LINE 

(TYPICAL) 
0

15 ~ 
0 
0 

IBLOCK 
I

I 
I

I 
(0 3 I 25 

FENCE COR.I 
15 0."* EAST 
OF PROP. LINE II 

II 
,I I 

I 

-t
 FENCE L1NE~
 I150.20* IAlEST__ -,.- 
OF PROP. COR. 

IPOWER)I POLE 

II 
II
 

,
 I 
13 14 10 17II 

II 
I IAlOOD~ 115 

FENCE lAlOOD 
FENCEr ,-=

FENCE COR.I 15 0.25:1: EAST 
• 0.10':1: NORTI-! 
OF PROP. COR.50.00' ....\ 

WEST 

('" R.O.W.)VAN BUREN STREET
 
NOTES,
 
I.) LINEAR ERROR Of CLOSURE IS LESS TJ-lAN OR EQUAL TO 0.151

•
 

2.) BEARINGS ARE REfERENCED TO TJ-lE ORIGINAL PLAT Of TJ-lE VILLAcE (NOW CITY) Of SOUTJ-l HAVEN.
 

Scale ,. = 30' Book 304 Page 77 Revision 

LEGENDabove Survey complies with Public Act 132 of 1970. 
Iron Found 0 Iron Set • 

Act 288 of Michigan Public Acts of 1967 as amended by Public Act 591 of 1997 Monument Found @ 

should be checked to see that any property convejtlnce does not violate this act. P = Platted D = Deeded M = Measured 

MITCHELL SURVEYS, INC.
 
404 Broadway 

South Haven, Michigan 49090 

Phone (616) 637 - 1107 

Fax (616) 637 - 1907 

Client JEFFREY POORMAN_-=-=,,-,--,---,-,-=-..;..--,---=--.::..o..;~~ _ 

Date 10-10-2002 Job No. 02-978 Sheet 1 of 2 

Dwg. By FAM Dwg. Ck~Desc. By ~ Desc. Ck~ 
Being in the NW 1/4 Section 10 •T 1 S .R 17 W 

SOUTH HAvtN Twp. VAN BUREN Co.• Michigan 
January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 21 of 24



SUlYeyor's Certificate: On the basis of my knowledge and belief, I, George J. Mitchell, Professional Surveyor, certify that I have completed a 
boundary survey and examination of the parcel of land described below, made on the ground to the normal standard of care of professional land 
surveyors practicing In Michigan. this survey was performed In accordance with adescription furnished by others and should be compared to the 
abstract of title or title Insurance policy for accuracy, easements, or exceptions. This survey was prepared for Phyllis Poorman and Jeffrey 
Poorman and does not extend to any unnamed person without expressed re-certification by the surveyor naming said person. 

!.() ~"- .~g.	 4.4.J!~ ,,''i6~.'~!.g~f.'', 
E·J···•• ~"1'-:;'Datt:··~ 'l~	 George J. ~~ii:':'t;i=~t $:~ .. '" 

M't h II S I ... "" . GEORG "~,,Ice urveys, nco ~ '" .: MITCHELL ". *-:. 
Professional Surveyor 19618	 =~: PfOFESSlONAL : 11:= 

--: SUR\JE'IOR : e
-:.~ '. No, : ~_:: 
--.-~. . ~ ..... 
~m .... 19618 .... ~~ 

FURNISHED DESCRIPTION: SITUATED IN THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN, VAN BUREN COUNTY, MICHIGAN. ......~ •.••••••.••• ':!..t6,'
//I'jiOFESS\O~t',,' 

LOTS 4 AND 15, BLOCK 15, VILLAGE (NOW CITY) OF SOUTH HAVEN, ACCORDING TO THE RECORDED PLAT THEREOF. III' I 

Scale ,. = 30' Book 304 Page 77 Revision 

LEGENDThe above Survey complies with Public Act 132 of 1970. Iron Found 0 Iron Set • 
Act 288 of Michigan Public Acts of 1967 as amended by Public Act 591 of 1997 Monument Found @ 

should be checked to see that any property conveyance does not violate this act. P = Platted D = Deeded M = Measured 

MITCHELL SURVEYS, INC. Clien t -----CJ~E:..!_.~!......!.FR..!..!::E::....!.Y---'P~O~O~Rl.!..!M!..!._A~N'_____	 _ 

404 Broadway Date 10-10-2002 Job No. 02-978 Sheet~ of_2_ 

South Haven, Michigan 49090 Dwg. By FAM Dwg. Ck· Desc. By- Desc. Ck __ 

Phone ( 616 ) 637 - 1107 Being in the NW 1/4 'section 10 ,T 1 S ,R 17 W 

Fax ( 616 ) 637 - 1907 SOUTH HAVEN Twp. VAN BUREN Co., Michigan 
January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 22 of 24



STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
DATE:  January 28, 2013 
ADDRESS:  322 and 324 Superior Street 
ZONING DISTRICT:  R-1A Residential 
LOT DIMENSIONS:  Both lots are 50x100 
LOT AREA:  5000 square feet each 
LOT COVERAGE:  40% maximum allowed; no change proposed 
REQUIRED SETBACKS:  Side – 3 feet 
EXISTING SETBACKS:  Side – Zero – structure crosses lot line 
PROPOSED SETBACKS:  Rear – Zero – structure to be constructed on existing 

location 
VARIANCE REQUEST:  Phyllis Poorman, 322 Superior Street and Timothy 
Brattain, 324 Superior Street, request a joint variance from zoning ordinance section 
1708-3, Accessory Buildings. The applicants are seeking to replace a shared garage 
which was destroyed by a falling tree. Because the garage crosses the property line, the 
structure is nonconforming in that it does not meet the required side or rear setback 
requirements.  The parcel numbers for the applicant properties are 80-53-015-004-01 
and 80-53-015-003-00. 
  
DIMENSIONAL VARIANCE STANDARDS 
City of South Haven Zoning Ordinance Section 2205: 
 
1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood.  
The garage in question has existed for 75+ years without detriment to the 
neighborhood. There is no reason to believe the replacement of the garage will 
have a negative impact on the surrounding neighborhood. 
 
2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 
It is the intent of the R1A zoning district to preserve the character of the single-
family neighborhoods. The reconstruction of the garage will not impair the 
appearance of the property and will not impair the intent of the residential 
purpose.    
 
3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property 
in question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to 
other properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a 
practical difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such 
as narrowness, shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to 
the intended use of the property. See Section 2204(2).  
This is a truly unique situation for two reasons. First, the garage is shared by 2 
adjacent properties and extends across the side lot lines. The garage needs to be 
replaced as a result of a tree falling on it during the recent windstorm. Staff 
believes that extraordinary circumstances are found in this situation and the 
garage should be replaced as requested.  
  
4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a 
substantial property right similar to that possessed by other properties in the 

January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 23 of 24



same zoning district and in the vicinity. The possibility of increased financial 
return shall not of itself be deemed sufficient to warrant a variance. 
Garages are not uncommon in the city. The applicants are not asking to create a 
garage in excess of what others may have but to replace an existing garage in the 
same location. There does not appear to be any financial motive for the 
improvement the applicants have requested. The applicants plan to construct the 
garage for personal use only. 
 
5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended 
use of said property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or 
recurrent a nature as to make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general 
regulation for such conditions or situation. 
This is certainly not a recurrent type of variance request in this zoning district and 
it is unlikely that the ZBA will ever see a request such as this again. Staff does not 
recommend amending the zoning ordinance to permit less side or rear yard 
setback for accessory buildings. It is more prudent to consider these requests as 
they arise. 
  
6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended 
use of said property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of 
actions of the property owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created.  
The problem is a result of the large tree falling on the garage and causing 
irreparable damage. It is not self-created in any way.  
 
7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density 
would unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted 
purpose, or would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome.  
Without the requested variance, the applicants would need to construct two 
separate garages which would create further difficulty given the existing driveway 
configurations. Staff believes strict compliance would be unnecessarily 
burdensome to the applicants. 
 
 8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome 
the inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 
The applicants are asking only to reconstruct the garage in the same location as it 
has existed for 75 years.  
 
9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant. 
The variance request only involves the property owned by the applicants. 

January 28, 2013 
Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Meeting 
Page 24 of 24


	01-28-2013 ZBA Agenda
	10-22-2012 ZBA Minutes DRAFT
	Minutes pg 2
	Minutes pg 3
	Minutes pg 4
	Minutes pg 5
	Minutes pg 6
	Minutes pg 7
	Minutes pg 8

	Staff Report
	Agenda Item #6
	322 Superior Street Application
	324 Superior Street Zoning Variance application
	Map & Photos
	Photos pg. 1
	Photos pg. 2
	Notice Area Aerial Map
	Michigan plat of survey
	Plat pg 2


	STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT
	Staff Findings pg. 2





